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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Henry Miller House, a large stone and brick building set on a rise in the
rolling farmland of wnorthern Augusta County, was built in the late 18th century by
ironmaster Henry Miller and added to in the mid-19th century.

The original portion of the house is a two-story, coursed-rubble stome block with
an ashlar facade, which consists of a square, four-bay, double-pile section with a
three-bay, single-pile wing attached in such a way as to present an unbroken seven-bay
facade to the road. This entire section has a gable roof on the double-pile end, while
the wing, formerly gabled as well, is now joined to the 19th-century Bll with a hipped
roof. There is a stone interior end chimney at either end of the house. Almost all of
the windows have original or early 9/6 sash except for the attic windows, which have &/6
. sash, and the windows at the west end of the single-pile wing, which have large 6/6 sash
that were installed when the ell was built. Plain stone jack arches are used over all
of the windows in the original house; several of those windows have original louvred
blinds hung on strap hinges. An early one-story porch supported on six squat,masonry
Tuscan columns stretches the length of the facade.

The house is set on its knoll in such a way as to provide grade entry into the
basement. Consequently the brick ell, laid in five-course American bond, is three full
stories from the basement floor to the eaves and has its principal entry at basement
level. The entry is sheltered by a porch supported on four attenuated recessed-panel
Tuscan pilers. Covering the ell is a gable roof, and there are two interior chimneys,
one on the end and one near the center.

The original section of the Millier House has a side-passage plan with corner fire-
places in the main block and a single room in the wing. Edward Chappell has argued
convineingly that the passage, which occupies half of the area of the main block, be-
trays the house as an fmalgamation of English Georgian ideas with the traditional
German Flurkuchenhaus. In this view, the present passage replaces the German Kiche,

a kitchen which also served as the principal family gathering place.

The ell is divided inte tweo rooms--a small, narrow one situated behind a larger
one and separated from it by an intervening stair to the basement.

The basement comnsists of finished rooms under the original wing and under the ell,
which contains the 19th-century kitchen. The latter has a subterranean dairy. Dirt-
floored storage bins occupy the space under the main block of the original house.

Most of the surviving decoration in the Miller House is confined to the main block
of the original house, with the exception of a mantel in the wing. The latter consists
of an architrave surround with a raised-panel frieze containing three brackets support-
ing a plain shelf, '

The front left (northeast) room on the first floor has a paneled chimney piece with
a single large rectangular panel over a long narrow one., Flanking the chimney piece is
a composition consisting of a tall panel over a short one extending from the baseboard
to the cornice. There is no early decoration in the southeast room.

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

. The Henry Miller. House in; northern Augusta County is a rare and carefully crafted
example of a large, late 18th-century Shenandoah Valley residence. In addition to its
age, excellent masonry, and handsome decoration, the house is significant for its, re~
flection of the process of acculturation of German building practices to the predomi-
nantly English culture of Virginia. The house was built by Henry Miller (d. 1796), an
important figure in the early industrial history of western Virginia and the founder of
the Mossy Creek iron furnace. '

In partnership with Mark Bird, a fellow native of Berks County, Pennsylvania,
Miller purchased 212 acres of land on Mossy Creek from Adam Stephen of Berkeley County
(now West Virginia) in 1774. Several months later Miller and Bird entered into a
partnership agreement for "carryingon . the act misterey and business of Iron Masters."

The Mossy Creek furnace produced iron bar , stoves, kettles, cookirg pots, axes,
picks and, during the Revolution, cannons, cannonballs and small arms. The business
soon prospered, and in 1778 Miller bought out his partner, who had never left
Pennsylvania, for 15,000 pounds Pennsylvania currency. For the remainder of his life,
Miller continued to add to his holdings which included a home tract eventually total-
ing 1150 acres.

— ey

Both architectural evidence and local tradition suggest that Miller built his stone
house in the mid-178Cs, The three-room, side-passage plan of the main block, as Edward
Chappell has shown™, reflects the adaptation of the Contimental three-room house model to
an English Georgian plan common elsewhere in Virginia. Certainly other aspects of the
house support this contention. The four-bay facade of the main block, the multiple
exterior entrances on several levels, and the attic stair to the auxiliary storage space
above the collars all resemble Continental practices more than English traditions. This
Germanic use of the voluminous house space for storage and work as well as for "living"
continued to affect the builders of the mid-19th-century ell, who utilized two entry
levels and a subterranean dairy there. '

Miller died in the spring of 1796, and his widow and six children divided the estate.
To his son Samuel was delegated the management of the iromworks, at 'a reasonable salary)’
on behalf of all of the heirs. By 1814 Samuel Miller was sole owner of the home tract
{valued at $15,000 in 1820) and the ironworks.

Samuel Miller died in 1836, and his heirs sold five tracts of his land, including

the 1150 acres and the ironworks, to Henry Keneagy of Augusta County. TIn 1838 Keneagy
1n turn conveyed the property to his father, John Keneagy, a resident of Lancaster Couﬁgy,

Pennsylvania, who gave the entire holding to his daughter and son-in-law, Elizabeth and

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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7. DESCRIPTION

The energetic, single-run stair in the passage has a closed string, molded
banister, and urn-shaped newel and balusters. The banister and newel are echoed in
the chair rail which is carried upstairs.

In the second~floor northeast room is a chimney piece similar to that in the room
below it. Remaining in the filled-in fireplace is an early l9th-century cast-iron
stove which was probably made at Miller's Mossy (Creek iron furnace. An origimal un-
supported molded shelf survives in the southeast room on this floor.

The large open attic of the main block contains a stair leading up to the collar
beams, a common feature in Conkinental houses, This stair gave access to an upper
storage level created, when the demand for space was greatest, by laying loose boards
across the collars.

One of the two remaining outbuildings is a two-story, one-cell rubble stone kitchen
of uncertain age, located behind the house. It has a brick chimney and has been heavily
altered. The two=story, three-bay, single-cell springhouse across the road has also
suffered alterations. It has been raised in height several times to accommodate changes
in the road grade. An office or other heated facility occupied the upper story,
accessible at grade from the road, and the springhouse facilities are in the ground
story, set omne or two steps below the rear grade,

Other buildings on the property located within the area being nominated include
a late 19th-century frame bank barn complex and a modern concrete-block buggy shed next
to the house, :

1Edward A. Chappell, Jr., "Cultural Change in the Shenandoah Valley: Northern
Augusta County Houses Before 1861" (Master's thesis, University of Virginia,1977).

DU

8. SIGNIFICANCE

Daniel Forrer (d. 1868) of Page County. They apparently operated the manufactory until
the time of the Civil War, '

The present owners of the Henry Miller House are Mr, and Mrs. Wayne S. Eberly, who
have owned it approximately one and one-half years.

du/VDS

1
Edward A. Chappell, Jr,, "Cultural Change in the Shenandoah Valley: Northern
Augusta County Houses Before 1861" (Master's thesis, University of Virginia,1977).
. GPO 892 455
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